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Question: 167

Topic: Licensed Post Offices
Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 


Senator Conroy asked:

Does Australia Post have a policy in place which sets out a time frame for written responses to queries, either verbal or written, from Licensees, Agents or Mail/Parcel contractors? If not, why not?

Answer: 

Australia Post does not have a formal policy setting out a particular time frame for such written responses. It endeavours to provide written responses as soon as practicable.
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Question: 168

Topic: Mail Contractors
Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 

Senator Conroy asked:

Can Mail/Parcel contractors access their own file as held by Australia Post?

Answer: 

Contactors may have access to documents that they and/or Australia Post have previously exchanged. Access to other information on file is subject to the usual process and statutory requirements regarding requests for access to documents by third parties.
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Question: 169

Topic: Mail Contractors
Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice

Senator Conroy asked:

Can Australia Post confirm that all mail contracts are reviewed within 12 months of tenders being called?

Answer: 

Contractors can request reviews under certain circumstances, namely:

· under clause 10.2 of the contract, a contractor can request a review of the labour and other vehicle costs after 12 months from the commencement of the contract, and each 12 months since the last review. The initial review reflects the movement in costs since the closing date for the tender.

· under clause 10.3 of the contract, a contractor can request a review of the fuel component of the contract after three months from the commencement of the contract and each three months from the date of their last request, provided the price has moved by more than 

+/-7%.
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Question: 170

Topic: Mail Contractors
Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 

Senator Conroy asked:

If not all contracts are reviewed, what percentage (or number) is reviewed?

Answer: 

There were 3,273 annual contract reviews in 2005/2006. In addition, there were 2,722 fuel reviews conducted during the same period.
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Question: 171

Topic: Mail Contractors
Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 

Senator Conroy asked:

Mail runs are supposed to be reviewed prior to tenders being called. Can Australia Post confirm that this takes place?

Answer: 

Yes.
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Question: 172

Topic: Mail Contractors

Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 

Senator Conroy asked:

Does Australia Post provide details of their last review to potential tenderers of the mail run?  If not, why not?

Answer: 

Yes. Key details of the last review (eg volume, type of articles, distances and estimated work hours) are included in the specification, which forms part of the tender pack.
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Question: 173

Topic: Mail Contractors
Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 

Senator Conroy asked:

Is the information supplied in Mail Contract Tender packs accurate?

Answer: 

Yes. Australia Post endeavours at all times to provide up to date and accurate information to tenderers.
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Question: 174

Topic: Mail Contractors 
Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 

Senator Conroy asked:

Why does clause 19.3 state that the tenderer should not rely on the accuracy of the material provided by Australia Post?

Answer: 

The statement (in clause 16.3 of the Tender Conditions) is made because Australia Post wants to ensure that tenderers conduct their own due diligence regarding the nature of the contract.
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Question: 175

Topic: Mail Contractors
Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 

Senator Conroy asked:

What accountability is there for Australia Post to provide accurate and up-to-date information?

Answer: 

It is in Australia Post’s best interest for the information contained in the tender pack to be accurate and up to date. If the information is not correct, the contract may need to be varied later on. Subsequent contract variations require additional administrative time and result in higher costs to Australia Post.
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Question: 176

Topic: Mail Contractors
Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 

Senator Conroy asked:

The tender pack contains a disclaimer noting that the information supplied by Australia Post regarding route distance, number of delivery points and articles to be delivered is an approximate indication only and that tenderers should make their own inquiries. What inquiries can they make?

The current (existing) contractor is not permitted to disclose any postal matters as part of his legal requirements of the contract. What extra information will Australia Post tell the prospective tenderer other than that in the tender document?

Answer: 

Tenderers should conduct their own due diligence regarding the nature of the contract, including assessing the route to understand the area to be serviced, the terrain and potential OH&S issues that will need to be mitigated by them and considered in their tender.

Tenderers can contact the Contract Manager handling the tender for answers to any questions that arise from their own review.
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Question: 177

Topic: Mail Contractors
Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 

Senator Conroy asked:

When a contractor realises that the distance/number of points/articles for delivery/time taken to complete the route are substantially different to the Australia Post advised figures, and then advises Australia Post of the fact, what action does Australia Post take?

Answer: 

If necessary, Australia Post will conduct a further review.

Outcome 3, Output 3.1






Question: 178

Topic: Mail Contractors
Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 

Senator Conroy asked:

What time frame does Australia Post have in place for the processing of clause 10 fuel reviews for contractors?

Answer:

Any variation to the contract fee as a result of a review under clause 10 will become effective on the first day of the month following the review request.
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Question: 179

Topic: Mail Contractors
Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 

Senator Conroy asked:

Does Australia Post backpay contractors where Australia Post does not respond in a timely manner?

Answer: 

The contract specifies when a payment is to become effective. If, for some reason, the review process is delayed, Australia Post will consider backpay.
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Question: 180

Topic: Mail Contractors
Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 

Senator Conroy asked:

When will Australia Post implement automatic fuel reviews for their contractors?


Answer: 

There are no plans to implement automatic fuel reviews. Under the conditions of contract, contractors have the right to request a fuel review.
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Question: 181

Topic: Mail Contractors
Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 

Senator Conroy asked:

Has Australia Post withheld any clause 9 or clause 10 mail contractor reviews for any reason?

If so, what were the reasons?

Answer: 

Yes. In the past, some reviews were withheld at the local level when contractors could not provide proof of their required insurances.

The practice, which is no longer in use, was applied after normal requests for evidence of insurance had failed. It was used in preference to other possible remedies such as formally terminating the contractors.
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Question: 182

Topic: Mail Contractors
Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 

Senator Conroy asked:

Does the Australia Post whistleblower policy cover all Contractors, Licensees, Agents and Franchisees?

If so, is there any difference in the cover between these people and Australia Post corporate employees?

Answer: 

Australia Post’s primary whistleblower policy covers staff and a separate policy covers Licensees, Agents, Contractors and their employees.

The only difference between the policies arises from the different legal relationships that Australia Post has as an employer of staff and as principal in the contractual relationships it has with Licensees, Agents, Contractors and their employees.
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Question: 183

Topic: Mail Contractors
Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 

Senator Conroy asked:

What procedures are in place to hear from a whistleblower?

Answer: 

Staff, Licensees, Agents, Contractors and their employees can report relevant matters to Australia Post’s Corporate Security Group, or via an external independent Whistleblower hotline.
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Question: 184

Topic: Mail Contractors
Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 

Senator Conroy asked:

What protection does Australia Post give whistleblowers, both corporate staff and contracted people?

Answer: 

Australia Post’s whistleblower policy makes it clear that the corporation will not tolerate any reprisals against people who disclose in good faith and with reasonable ground any suspect illegal or improper conduct.
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Question: 185

Topic: Conflict of Interest
Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 

Senator Conroy asked:

According to Australia Post’s Code of Ethics, Australia Post will avoid situations where a conflict of interest might be inferred. Can Australia Post please explain how this policy is consistent with the practice of awarding mail contracts and licensed post offices to spouses of Australia Post staff and allowing departing Australia Post staff to apply for mail contracts and licensed post offices?

Answer: 

Australia Post is concerned with avoiding conflicts of interest and perceived conflicts of interest. Therefore, it aims to ensure that there is transparency in the tender process and where any potential conflicts of interest may exist, employees are required under the Australia Post Code of Ethics to inform their immediate manager and declare it in writing to the Human Resources Department. Where a conflict of interest is judged to exist, the employee concerned would be required to abstain from associated decision making.
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Question: 186

Topic: Conflict of Interest
Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 

Senator Conroy asked:

Does Australia Post ensure that documents accessed or made available to Australia Post staff who may (after leaving Australia Post) tender for a mail contract or a licensed post office are also able to be accessed and made available to other tenderers?

Answer: 

No. Australia Post has no means of determining whether an ex-employee has mentally retained information that may assist that employee in any tender process. In terms of physical documents, however, any employee who leaves Australia Post is not entitled to retain any document which may provide that employee with an advantage in a tender.

Under the Australia Post Code of Ethics, employees are required to treat information relating to Australia Post’s business as confidential and not use it for any purpose other than official duties. After ceasing employment with Australia Post, they are required to return all documents, records and information in their possession and have a continuing obligation to maintain confidentiality.
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Question: 187

Topic: Conflict of Interest
Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 

Senator Conroy asked:

What controls and safeguards are in place so as to ensure that ex-Australia Post staff who tender for a mail contract or licensed post office are treated no differently from other tenderers and secure no advantage as a result of having worked for Australia Post?

Answer: 

Contracts and licences are awarded through the Public Tender Process and Australia Post Managers are trained to assess each individual tender on its merits.

Contract audits are also undertaken so that Contract Compliance Managers, in reviewing the contracts, can assess whether there have been any discrepancies in the tender process.

Outcome 3, Output 3.1






Question: 188

Topic: Conflict of Interest
Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 

Senator Conroy asked:

Is it possible for an ex-Australia Post staff member to be awarded a mail contract or licensed post office by a former colleague at Australia Post with whom they worked?

Answer: 

Yes. However, under the Australia Post Code of Ethics, employees are required to avoid using their position to favour a third party, particularly in situations where the employee has a relationship with the third party and the third party has an interest in the result of the decision. All tenders are assessed on their merits.
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Question: 189

Topic: Conflict of Interest
Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 

Senator Conroy asked:

What controls and safeguards are in place so as to ensure that a company controlled by an Australia Post staff member does not tender for a mail contract or licensed post office?

Answer: 

Under the Australia Post Code of Ethics, where a potential conflict of interest exists or may be inferred, employees are required to inform their immediate manager and declare it in writing to the Human Resources Department.

The “Information for Tenderers” section of the Mail Contract Tender Pack advises tenderers that they should consult the Code of Ethics and consider any potential conflicts of interests before submitting their tender.

All company applications for licensed post offices are checked through the Australian Securities and Investment Commission. Australia Post will not grant a licence to a company that has a staff member as a director or shareholder.
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Question: 190

Topic: Conflict of Interest

Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 

Senator Conroy asked:

What controls and safeguards are in place so as to ensure the confidentiality of tenders for mail contracts and licensed post offices?

Answer: 

Under the Australia Post Code of Ethics, employees are required to treat information relating to Australia Post’s business as confidential and not use it for any purpose other than official duties.

The Mail Contract Management Manual also prescribes certain processes and procedures concerning the receipt and opening of tenders which are designed to assist in maintaining confidentiality.
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Question: 191

Topic: Conflict of Interest
Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 

Senator Conroy asked:

Has any Australia Post staff member been warned, disciplined or dismissed over a conflict of interest in relation to a mail contract, a licensed post office or a tender for either?

If so, how many, what action was taken against the relevant staff members and what was the nature of the conflict of interest?

Answer: 

There was one occasion in 2005 where a staff member at a post office was a director of a company that won a tender. The staff member did not have any input into the tender or selection process and was advised to resign the directorship to remove any perceived conflict of interest.
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Question: 192

Topic: Conflict of Interest
Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 

Senator Conroy asked:

Is Australia Post aware of any staff members receiving a gift, benefit or payment in connection with a mail contract, a licensed post office or a tender for either?  

If so, how many staff members are involved, what was the nature of the gift, payment or benefit, how was it connected with a mail contract, licensed post office or tender and what actions did Australia Post take in each instance?

Answer: 

No.
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Question: 193

Topic: Australia Post
Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 

Senator Conroy asked:

How many Australia Post senior appointments are made from outside the postal industry?  

Who are they?

Answer:

Of four senior management appointments in the past two years, two were from outside Australia Post (Adam Treffry – Group Manager Corporate Real Estate and Wayne Saunders – Chief Information Officer).
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Question: 194

Topic: Australia Post 
Hansard Page: Written Question on Notice 

Senator Conroy asked:

Are Australia Post senior managers/executives on contract?

What level of achievement do they have to obtain to have their contracts renewed?

Answer: 

Yes.

A satisfactory level of performance as established under individual Performance Management Agreements.
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